
 
 

 

 
Cumbria Police and Crime Panel 
 

 
Thursday, 14 October 2021 at 10.30 am  

 

 
VENUE: Council Chamber, County Offices, Kendal, 

LA9 4RQ  
 

AGENDA 

 

 
PLEASE NOTE THERE WILL BE A PRIVATE BRIEFING FOR THE 

PANEL AT 9.30 AM 
 

   

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

To receive any apologies for absence. 
  

 

2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 

To receive any declarations of interest. 
  

 

3   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
To consider whether the press and public should be excluded 

from the meeting during consideration of any item on the 
Agenda. 

  

 

4   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 
To receive any items of public participation. 

 
(Questions and petitions must be received in writing by 

Lynn Harker, Senior Democratic Services Officer at least seven 
working days before the date of the Panel meeting).  

 



 

 

 

5   MINUTES 
 

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Panel held on 9 July 2021 (copy enclosed). 

(Pages 5 - 12) 
 

 

6   REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2021/22 
 

(1) Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner Budget 
Report 

 
To receive a report from the Office of the Police and Crime 

Commissioner (copy enclosed). 
 

(2) Cumbria Constabulary Budget Report 
 

To consider a report from Cumbria Constabulary (copy enclosed). 
(Pages 13 - 16) 

 

 

7   POLICE AND CRIME PLAN FOR CUMBRIA 

 
To consider a report from the Office of the Police and Crime 

Commissioner (copy enclosed). 
(Pages 17 - 34) 

 
 

8   UPDATE ON COMPLAINTS 

 
To consider a report from the Monitoring Officer (Cumbria County 

Council) (copy enclosed). 
(Pages 35 - 36) 

 
 

9   PANEL UPDATE REPORT 

 
To consider the Panel Briefing from the Senior Policy and Scrutiny 

Project Officer (Cumbria County Council) (copy enclosed). 
(Pages 37 - 42) 

 
 

10   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

The next meeting of the Panel will be held on Tuesday 

25 January 2022 at 10.30 am at Cumbria House, Botchergate, 
Carlisle, CA1 1RD.  

 



 

 

 

 
INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - if you wish to 

inspect Minutes or Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have 
any other general queries about the meeting, please contact: 

 
Lynn Harker, Senior Democratic Services Officer, Cumbria House, 

117 Botchergate, Carlisle, Cumbria CA1 1RD 
 

Telephone No: 07825340229 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

CUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
 

Minutes of a Meeting of the Cumbria Police and Crime Panel held on 
Friday, 9 July 2021 at 10.00 am at Conference Room A/B, Cumbria 

House, Botchergate, Carlisle, CA1 1RD 

 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Mr MA Johnson (Cumbria County Council) (Chair) 
 

Mr RK Bingham, Cumbria County Council (Vice-Chair) 
Mr KR Hamilton, Barrow Borough Council 

Mr J Little, Independent Co-opted Member 
Mr P McSweeney, South Lakeland District Council 

Mr K Meller, Carlisle City Council 
Mr A Smith, Allerdale Borough Council 

Mr D Whipp, Cumbria County Council 
 

Also in Attendance:- 

 
Mrs L Harker - Senior Democratic Services Officer 

Ms C Killeen - Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Manager 
Ms L Holme - Office of the Cumbria Police and Crime 

Commissioner 
Mr P McCall - Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) 

Mr B Spencer - Group Solicitor/Deputy Monitoring Officer 
Ms V Stafford - Chief Executive, Office of the Police and Crime 

Commissioner 
 

  
PART 1 – ITEMS CONSIDERED IN 

THE PRESENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND 
PRESS 

 

 

 
Members received a message from the outgoing Chair, Mr W McEwan, 

expressing his thanks and appreciation for their commitment and 
contributions.  He thanked the Police and Crime Commissioner and his 

colleagues for their co-operative and proactive approach to the work of 
the Panel and officers of the County Council for their support.  He wished 

the Panel well for the future. 
 

The Police and Crime Commissioner thanked Mr McEwan for his 
co-operation, pragmatic approach and positive contributions during his 

time as Chair of the Panel. 
 

 

5

Agenda Item 5



 

 

1 ELECTION OF CHAIR 
 

Mr M Johnson and Mr P McSweeney were nominated for Chair of the 
Panel.  It was 

 

RESOLVED, that Mr M Johnson be elected Chair of the Panel for the 
ensuing year. 

 
Mr Johnson thereupon took the Chair. 

 
 

2 ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR 
 

RESOLVED, that Mr RK Bingham be elected Vice-Chair of the Panel for 
the ensuing year. 

 
 

3 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Ms M Bellis, Ms G Dinsdale, 

Ms D Holden, Ms R Hunter, Mr R Marshall and Ms G Shearer. 
 

 
4 MEMBERSHIP 

 
It was noted that:- 

 
(1) Mr W McEwan and Miss H Fearon (Cumbria County Council 

representatives) were no longer members of the Panel and had 
been replaced with Mr D Whipp plus one outstanding vacancy. 

 
(2) Mr A Kirkbride (Allerdale Borough Council representative) had been 

replaced by Mr A Smith. 
 

The Chair welcomed Mr J Little, Independent Member, to the meeting of 

the Panel. 
 

 
5 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
There were no declarations of interest on this occasion. 

 
 

6 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

RESOLVED, that the press and public be not excluded from the 
meeting for any items of business on this occasion. 

6



 

 

 
7 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 
There were no items of public participation to be considered at this 

meeting. 

 
 

8 MINUTES 
 

RESOLVED, that the minutes of the meeting held on 18 March 2021 be 
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 

 
 

9 CUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER'S ANNUAL 
REPORT 2020-21 

 
The Panel received the police and Crime Commissioner’s (PCC) fifth 

Annual Report which covered the period from 1 April 2020 to the 
31 March 2021.  Further to previous discussions with the Panel a more 

user-friendly format had been developed with accessibility in mind, to 

ensure the public could easily understand how the Commissioner had 
carried out his role during the year.  Members noted that further details 

had also been provided within the public documents of the Chief Finance 
Officer’s Narrative statement in the final accounts and the Annual 

Governance Statement. 
 

A discussion took place regarding prisoners undertaking work in 
communities and members asked how this was funded.  The PCC 

confirmed that although he had agreed to co-ordinate this project within 
the county it was not funded from his Office but was the responsibility of 

probation and prison rehabilitation services.  It was explained the scheme 
was at a very early stage and it was anticipated that a number of 

organisations and statutory bodies would be offered the opportunity to be 
included in the project. 

 

The Panel raised their concerns regarding the data relating to drug-use 
and related crimes in the county.  The PCC acknowledged their concerns 

and informed members this was a national problem highlighting the need 
for communities and wider partners to create a culture where illegal 

drugs were not acceptable.   
 

Members raised their concerns regarding the potential lack of activity 
regarding reported crimes.  The PCC explained that whilst it may appear 

that no action was being taken he assured members this was not the 
case and emphasised the importance of reporting crimes as this provided 

vital intelligence for future use. 
 

7



 

Members discussed the use of the 101 service and local hubs for 

non-emergency crimes or incidents.  They highlighted concerns regarding 
the length of time for 101 calls to be answered and the lack of availability 

of IT resources for some members of the public to allow them to report 
crimes.  

 

The PCC acknowledged the issues around the timescales for 101 calls to 
be answered explaining this was a national problem.  Whilst appreciating 

that a minority of the public did not have access to technology he felt 
there was a need to continue the 101 service but explained there were 

several ways to report incidents.  He highlighted that although a number 
of statutory agencies who had been part of the service initially had 

subsequently withdrawn the police still provided a non-emergency, 24 
hours 7 days a week service informing members of the challenges around 

approximately 30% of the calls being non police-related matters. 
 

The Panel discussed relationships which had previously existed between 
local police officers and councillors.  Whilst acknowledging resource 

issues members highlighted the benefits this had within communities.  
The PCC explained that this interaction should now take place at the local 

focus hubs where partner agencies worked together to secure the best 

possible outcomes for the public.  It was agreed that the PCC would 
provide details of local hub Inspectors to the Panel. 

 
A discussion took place regarding the Home Office Safer Streets funding 

in the Barrow area.  Officers explained that following an unsuccessful 
second bid a third one would by submitted by Barrow Borough Council 

and endorsed by the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner. 
 

The PCC thanked members for their engagement highlighting the success 
which this demonstrated. 

 
RESOLVED, that the Annual Report be noted. 

 
 

10 POLICE AND CRIME PLAN FOR CUMBRIA 

 
The Panel received a report from the Office of the Police and Crime 

Commissioner which provided an overview of the process for developing 
the next Police and Crime Plan for Cumbria, including how the Police and 

Crime Panel and the public would be consulted.  It was explained that the 
Plan was the key document which set out the Police and Crime 

Commissioner’s objectives for policing and for his work with partner 
agencies.  

 
 

 

8



 

Members were informed that an eight weeks public consultation was 

currently underway to seek views on the policing matters most of 
concern to Cumbrian residents, to help formulate the Plan.  Officers 

confirmed that the survey site was monitored and the information would 
be contained in the Annual Report. 

 

The Panel felt there was a need to focus on the impact of the additional 
police officers over the next three years to ensure the extra resources 

were effective, therefore, felt it was fundamental to review this in 
consultation with the Chief Constable. 

 
Members noted that the final draft Plan would be brought to the Panel’s 

meeting in October for comments prior to formal adoption and launch in 
early November. 

 
RESOLVED, that 

 
 (1) the timeline for development of the Police and Crime 

Plan be noted; 
 

 (2) the Panel provide feedback on the Plan; 

 
 (3) the Panel participates in the public consultation and 

encourages residents and partner organisations to 
take part.  

 
 

11 CUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME PANEL CHAIRMAN'S ANNUAL 
REPORT 2019-21 

 
Members received the draft Cumbria Police and Crime Panel Chairman’s 

Annual Report 2019-21 which reflected the range of activity undertaken 
by the Panel over the last two years highlighting its importance as a tool 

to promote the valuable work of the Panel to the public and partners. 
 

The Panel agreed that the logos of all local authorities in Cumbria should 

be included on the Report. 
 

RESOLVED, that the report be noted. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

9



 

12 ACCOUNTABILITY FRAMEWORK 

 
The Panel received a copy of the Commissioner’s Accountability 

Framework for 2021-2024 which enabled him to discharge his statutory 
responsibilities, make decisions and hold the Chief Constable to account.  

It was explained that since his election in May 2021, the Commissioner 

had reviewed this framework to ensure it remained fit for purpose. 
 

RESOLVED, that the report be noted. 
 

 
13 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2020/21 

 
(1) Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner Budget Report 

 
The Panel received a report from the Office of the Police and Crime 

Commissioner (OPCC) which provided the Commissioner’s Financial 
Summary 2020/21 forecast as at 31 March 2021.   

 
Members noted the expenditure and income variances which included 

+£10k; the overspend was largely as a result of overspends on supplies 

and services which were offset by underspends on staffing.   
 

Officers explained the funding provided to the Constabulary was -£616k; 
the underspend at the year-end was largely as a result of reduced 

expenditure on non-staff budgets such as supplies and services (£1.6m), 
other employee costs (£103k), transport costs (£79k) and increased 

income of £163k.  
 

It was explained that much of this underspend was attributable both 
directly and indirectly to the impact of the COVID 19 pandemic on the 

Constabulary’s activities and were partially offset by additional 
expenditure on police pay.   

 
Members noted that £890k was a result of the deliberate decision to 

recruit the Constabulary share of the operation uplift officers ahead of 

target, police staff pay of £140k, PCSOs of £62k and third part related 
costs of £224k highlighting that the Constabulary recruitment plan in 

relation to Operation Uplift continued to proceed well. 
 

(2) Cumbria Constabulary Revenue Budget 2020/21 
 

The Panel considered a report from Cumbria Constabulary which provided 
details of the Constabulary’s Revenue Budget Monitoring 2020/21.   

 
Members were informed of the additional expenditure on pay expenditure 

which included police officers +£890k in relation to police officers.  This 
increase was largely as a result of the deliberate decision to recruit 

10



 

operation uplift phase 1 and 2 officers in advance of the target date and 

a number of acting/temporary promotions £736k, additional spend on 
Operation Lectern £111k plus additional overtime in Crime £108k, TP 

£108k, Uplift £39k.  It was explained those increases were partially offset 
by a reduction in costs of Police Pensions of -£212k.  

 

The Panel noted 62k additional spend in relation to PCSOs which was 
principally due to changes to the original workforce plan including 

starting one full-time equivalent above budget and a reduction in the 
number of leavers in the year compared to the original forecast.  

 
Members were informed that after removing £413k of income lost due to 

COVID 19 the additional income arises, in the main, due to abnormal 
loads income of £74k, mutual aid £114k and other reimbursed services 

£63k.  It was explained they were offset by reductions in POCA income 
£30k, Sale of Goods and Assets and Fees. 

 
The Panel received details of the non-pay expenditure which included 

other employee -£103k, transport -£79k and supplies and services -
£1,587k. 

 

The Panel noted that the main change between figures reported at the 
end of December and year-end was in relation to costs incurred in 

relation to the response to the COVID pandemic, government grants 
received to offset those and ongoing savings to core activity as a result of 

the impact of the pandemic.  It was explained the resulting underspend 
had been transferred to a COVID 19 recovery and renewal reserve to 

cover the costs of future changes to work arrangements arising from the 
pandemic. 

 
The Commissioner gave a brief update on the current PCSOs explaining 

that an initial review would be undertaken to determine the amount 
which were required with the outcome of this expected in the Autumn. 

 
RESOLVED, that the report be noted. 

 

 
14 UPDATE ON COMPLAINTS 

 
The Panel received a report from the Monitoring Officer (Cumbria County 

Council) which advised members of any complaints received in 
accordance with the Panel’s Complaints Procedure.  The report outlined 

where appropriate, what, if any, action had been taken in respect of the 
complaints. 

 
Members were informed that as at the date of the report and since the 

previous report, no further complaints had been received and only one 
complaint, as advised in the previous report, was ongoing.  It was noted 

11



 

that correspondence had been exchanged to ascertain the actual 

complaint against the Police and Crime Commissioner, and this complaint 
was put to the Commissioner.   

 
The Panel was informed that the Office of the Police and Crime 

Commissioner’s view of the subject matter of the complaint was that it 

was not properly within the remit of Police and Crime Panel.  It was 
highlighted that this was an important point that needed to be resolved 

finally and, on behalf of the Panel, permission was being sought from the 
Home Office (in accordance with the terms of the grant to the host 

authority for the Panel) for the Panel to be able to seek Counsel’s advice 
on the point.  

 
RESOLVED, that the report be noted. 

 
 

15 PANEL UPDATE REPORT 
 

Members received a report from the Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Advisor 
(Cumbria County Council) which gave an update on key issues and 

developments that had occurred since the last meeting of the Panel on 

18 March 2021.  The information detailed an Update on National Policy 
Developments, Funding Opportunities, Public Consultation Survey on 

Cumbria Police and Crime Commissioner’s Police and Crime Plan 2021-
2024 and the Public Accountability Conference. 

 
RESOLVED, that the report be noted. 

 
 

16 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

It was noted that the next meeting of the Panel would be held on 
Thursday 14 October 2021 at 10.30 am in the Council Chamber, County 

Offices, Kendal, LA9 4RQ. 
 

 

The meeting ended at 11.05 am 
  

 

 

 

 

12



 

 

The Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria 

Financial Summary 2021/22 as at 31 July 2021 

Police and Crime Panel 14 October 2021 

 

P  

Constabulary Revenue Budget 

Overspend £224k (0.16%)  

Reduced Expenditure -£156k (0.11%),  

Reduced Income £380k (6.31%) 

(see page 3) 

 

  
Capital Budget 

At this relatively early stage in the financial year 

the capital budget is forecast to be on budget at 

£6.688m with no slippage or budget changes to 

report.  Most of the planned vehicle 

replacements are ordered, and deliveries are 

planned on a weekly basis.  In relation to ICT, new 

agile ways of working need to be fully reviewed 

and the impact on the future ICT infrastructure is 

still to be evaluated.  

 

Treasury Management 

Investment balance 31/07/21 £26.674m  

(Up 173% from £9.76m at 31/03/21). 

 

The investment income forecast for the year is 

£2k reflecting the extremely low interest rates 

currently being received whilst prioritising the 

security of the principal funds. 

 

 

Operation Uplift 

The forecast spend on operation uplift is 

£3.593m 

 

(see page 3 for more details) 

 

 

 

Op Lectern - Covid 19 

The forecast spend on the constabulary COVID 

19 response (Op Lectern) is £559k 

 

(see page 3 for more details) 

 

 

Group Revenue Budget 

Group Overspend £203k (0.18%)  

Constabulary Overspend £224k (0.16%),  

PCC Overspend £21k (0.09%) 

(see page 2) 

 

13

A
genda Item

 6

http://vectips.com/tips-and-tricks/illustrate-a-cartoon-building/attachment/12-cartoon-building/#main
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&url=http%3A%2F%2Fclipart-library.com%2Finvest-cliparts.html&psig=AOvVaw3tWwBojImbXaSBwA1nSfQ6&ust=1590062423731000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAIQjRxqFwoTCIj_66GywukCFQAAAAAdAAAAABAF
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.netclipart.com%2Fisee%2FhixJxx_group-of-people-clip-art-people-icon-grey%2F&psig=AOvVaw0V-UKIYMRRwLA_67OKKaJP&ust=1590062981495000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAIQjRxqFwoTCNCq-au0wukCFQAAAAAdAAAAABAE


 

 

PCC Revenue Budget 2021/22 as at 31 July 2021 

 

 

Description Revised Forecast Forecast Forecast

Budget Expenditure 

/ (Income

(Under)/

Overspend

(Under)/

Overspend

2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22

£'000s £'000s £'000s %

Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 803 772 (31) (3.86%)

Other PCC Budgets (24,721) (24,711) 10 (0.04%)

Movements To / (From) Reserves 227 227 0 0.00%

Total OPCC Budgets (23,691) (23,712) (21) 0.09%

Funding Provided to the Constabulary 138,802 139,026 224 0.16%

Net Expenditure 115,111 115,314 203 0.18%

External Funding (115,112) (115,112) 0 0.00%

Total (1) 202 203

Expenditure & Income Variances 

Office of the PCC -£31k The underspend is largely as a result of a combination of 

reduced expenditure on staffing in the OPCC, transport costs and supplies and 

services.  

Other PCC Budgets +£10k  

Additional expenditure on Premises (£1k) mostly due to increased property repair 

and maintenance (£10k), offset by reductions utilities (£2k), rent and rates (£4k) and 

cleaning (£3k).  

Reduction in investment income £8k. 

Funding Provided to the Constabulary overspend £224k, key themes:  

• Overall forecasted expenditure is close to budget at the moment. 

• Overtime pressures emerging for officers and, to a lesser extent, staff in all 

Commands / Directorates. 

• Additional costs of Operation Uplift as a result of accelerated recruitment of 

officers, particularly in late 2021/22 and re-structuring of officer posts. +£191k. The 

Constabulary recruitment plan in relation to Operation Uplift continues to proceed 

well.   

• Savings on police staff pay as a result of higher than forecast vacancies -£454k.  

• Forecast financial impact of Operation Lectern (direct and indirect) is an overspend 

of £162k. 

• Savings reported on most non staff budgets offset by reduced income. 

Page 3 provides a more detailed analysis of the Constabulary revenue budget 

position. 

Details of the Constabulary budget position are included on the following page. 

The balance on the police property act fund as at 31 July 2021 was £53k.  

Details of the awards made from this fund to community bodies can be 

found on the Commissioners website.  Successful Applicants/Grant 

Agreements - Cumbria Police and Crime Commissioner (cumbria-

pcc.gov.uk) 

14

https://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/successful-applicantsgrant-agreements/
https://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/successful-applicantsgrant-agreements/
https://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/successful-applicantsgrant-agreements/


 

 

Constabulary – Revenue Budget 2021/22 

 

 Constabulary - Subjective Analysis 

 

Description Revised Forecast Forecast Forecast

Budget Outturn (Under)/

Overspend

(Under)/

Overspend

2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22

£'000s £'000s £'000s %

Constabulary Funding

Police Officers 97,937 98,660 723 0.74%

Police Community Support Officers 1,894 1,946 52 2.75%

Police Staff 25,610 25,156 (454) (1.77%)

Other Employee Budgets 2,857 2,697 (160) (5.60%)

Transport Related Expenditure 2,357 2,074 (283) (12.01%)

Supplies & Services 11,689 11,479 (210) (1.80%)

Third Party Related Expenses 2,484 2,660 176 7.09%

Total Constabulary Funding 144,828 144,672 (156) (0.11%)

Income (6,026) (5,646) 380 (6.31%)

Total Constabulary Funding Net of Income 138,802 139,026 224 0.16%

Constabulary - Objective Analysis 

 

Command / Directorate Revised 

Budget 

£'000s

Forecast 

Outturn

£'000s

(Under) / 

Overspend 

£'000s

 (Under) / 

Overspend 

% 

Staff Pay

Core Police Pay 89,353 89,544 191 0.2%

Core PCSO Pay 1,887 1,939 52 2.8%

CORE

Chief Officer Group 1,287 1,258 (29) -2.3%

Crime & Safeguarding Command 11,000 11,167 167 1.5%

Operations & Neighbourhood Policing Command 7,127 6,966 (161) -2.3%

Insight & Performance Command 2,121 2,055 (66) -3.1%

Corporate Support Directorate 8,885 8,554 (331) -3.7%

Digital Data & Tech Command 9,853 9,852 (1) -0.0%

Legal Services Directorate 235 221 (14) -5.9%

Marketing & Communications 609 601 (8) -1.3%

SECONDED (23) (19) 4 -17.1%

EARMARKED 966 1,327 361 37.4%

PROJECT 5,502 5,561 59 1.1%

Grand Total 138,802 139,026 224 0.2%

Operation Lectern (Covid-19 Response) 

The Combined Impact of Operation Lectern is a net increased cost of £162k.  This 

figure is comprised of: 

• Covid related spend £559k (includes PPE and additional covid patrols) 

• Less Home Office surge funding of -£480k  

• Plus loss of routine Constabulary Income £374k (policing of events, driver 

awareness etc)  

• Less savings on core budgets £291k (including vehicle hire, vehicle fuel, 

travel, accommodation & subsistence). 

 

Operation Uplift 

The forecast expenditure outturn on Operation Uplift reflects having recruited an 

additional 51 FTE officers by 31st March 2021 and a forecast additional 47 by 31st March 

2022. The quoted figures exclude a further £1.223m of expenditure in relation to 

recruitment of officers over and above the Operation Uplift target and an additional 9 

Sergeant post which are forecast to be incurred in 2021/22 and have largely been 

budgeted. 

The forecast overspend on police officer pay predominantly relates to changes in 

profiled recruitment of Uplift cohorts, the allocation of two police officer trainers and 

payments for unsociable hours. 

Staffing in support of the additional recruitment and servicing the additional officers 

underspent by £213k.  This relates to reduced staff trainer requirements. 

 

15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner Report 
 

Police and Crime Plan for Cumbria 
 
Date: 20th September 2021 
 
Originating Officer: Partnerships and Strategy Manager 
 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
This report presents the final draft of the Police and Crime Plan for 2021-25. The Plan is the key 
document which sets out the Police and Crime Commissioner’s objectives for policing and for his 
work with partner agencies, to keep Cumbria safe. 
 
Recommendations 
 
That the Panel: 

i) Notes the outcomes of the public and partner consultation and the timescales for 
publication of the Police and Crime Plan; 

ii) Provides comments on the Plan and a written response. 
 

1 Background 
 
1.1 Police and Crime Plans are a core planning tool for Police and Crime Commissioners and each 

Commissioner is required to issue a new Police and Crime Plan as soon as practicable after 
taking office. The Plan sets out the Commissioner’s priorities for policing, the resources he will 
provide to the Constabulary and areas on which he will focus with partner agencies to address 
wider crime and community safety issues. At its last meeting, the Panel received a report about 
the proposed process for the development of the Police and Crime Plan following the elections 
in May 2021. Research and consultation work have now been completed and the final draft of 
the Plan has been produced, which is provided at Appendix 2 for consideration.  

1.2 The Police and Crime Plan focusses on the priorities identified by the Commissioner for his new 
term of office, taking account of local concerns and national requirements. As outlined at the 
Panel’s meeting in July, the process for developing the Plan draws on a range of sources of 
information. This includes looking at national strategies and priorities, as well as scanning the 
horizon for economic, political and social changes likely to affect community safety and 
policing. Detailed research was conducted in 2019, involving a range of stakeholders, to create 

17

Agenda Item 7



 

a Crime and Community Safety Strategic Assessment which highlights the key issues for 
consideration in the Plan. More recent developments, such as the national Beating Crime Plan 
and emerging concerns about violence against women and girls have been taken into account 
in the final draft of the Plan. Local developments such as the emerging partnership Child 
Exploitation Strategy and the Covid-19 Recovery Action Plan have also been reviewed.  

2 Consultation  

2.1 The Commissioner launched an eight-week public consultation over the summer to seek views 
on the crime issues which present the biggest concern in local areas. This provided an 
opportunity to understand any recent changes in people’s experiences and to check the 
objectives in the draft Plan. 545 people responded to the online survey. The highest number 
of respondents said the following issues were a ‘very big problem’ in their local area: 

 Drug dealing and drug taking 

 Road safety, such as speeding and careless driving 

 Antisocial behaviour 

 Fraud and scams, including online, on the phone or on the doorstep 

 Online crime 

2.2 158 people provided specific comments on issues in their area. These mainly provided more 
detail related to the problems above and also included comments on police presence. The 
issues most commonly experienced in each district of the county reflect the problems above, 
however the proportion of people experiencing them varied. This stands out in particular in 
relation to drug dealing and drug taking: 64.1% of people who responded from Barrow said 
this was a very big problem, compared with 21.7% in Eden (despite being the issue which the 
second highest number of people in that area felt was a very big problem).  Appendix 1 
provides a breakdown of the top issues by district, age and gender.  

2.3 For all of these areas of concern, there are objectives relating to their causes and impacts 
within the Police and Crime Plan. Each issue will involve working in partnership with other 
agencies and holding the Chief Constable to account for the contribution policing makes to 
tackling them. To assist this, a section has been included early in the Plan to highlight key public 
concerns so that these are at the forefront of partner agencies’ minds.  

2.4 Partner organisations involved in the countywide partnership ‘Safer Cumbria’ were also asked 
to comment on the draft Plan as part of the consultation. Responses received were supportive 
and a small number highlighted aspects of the Plan which they felt were particularly important, 
linked to their own areas of responsibility (bringing offenders to justice, offender management, 
blue light services and victim engagement). Some minor changes to wording have been made 
in the final version of the Plan in response to this.  

3 Next Steps 

3.1 In line with his previous Police and Crime Plan, the Police and Crime Commissioner believes 
that the published document should be clear and accessible for the public. The content of the 
Plan therefore focusses on the strategic objectives and approaches which the Commissioner 
will take. There is deliberate use of plain English and an avoidance of more technical terms, 
wherever possible. The final draft is presented to the Panel as a Word document, to provide 

18



 

an opportunity to comment on the content. The published version will be colourful and visual, 
including images and graphics to highlight the key themes of the Plan. Design work will be 
completed once any comments from the Panel have been received.  

3.2 An Action Plan will be used by the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner to identify key 
areas of work to contribute to the objectives in the Plan. This will be delivered through 
commissioning and directly managed projects, as well as by influencing and working with 
partners. Many aspects of the Plan relate to the Commissioner working with and holding to 
account the Chief Constable for the delivery of policing. The Commissioner will use a range of 
approaches to gain assurance from the Constabulary. This includes his Public Accountability 
Conferences, which will shine a light on key themes from the Plan, and through a framework 
of performance measures which is being developed to include the new National Crime and 
Policing Measures.  

3.3 Under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act, the Commissioner must have regard to 
and publish a response to any report or recommendations made by the Panel related to the 
draft Plan. The Panel is invited to provide any comments in writing by 29th October, to enable 
the Commissioner to publish the Plan in November, in line with the timetable discussed at the 
last Panel meeting.  

 

4 Implications 
 
4.1 Financial 

The Plan sets out the budget which the Commissioner will provide to the Chief Constable for 
the provision of policing. 

 
4.2 Legal 

The process for the development of the Plan has been designed to ensure statutory 
requirements in relation to the Plan are complied with.  

 
4.3 Risk 

There is a risk that the publication of the Plan will be delayed if any of the stages in its 
development take longer than planned.   

 
4.4 HR / Equality 

An Equality Impact Assessment has been developed for the draft Plan and will be kept under 
review as objectives are finalised. In developing the Plan, feedback has been considered from 
people from a range of diverse backgrounds who have shared their experience in relation to 
crime, policing or as a victim with the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner or its 
partner agencies. 

19



 
 
 

 
 
 

Appendix 1: Survey Responses by Area, Age and Gender 
 
Below are details of the issues which the highest number of respondents from each district 
said was a ‘very big problem’. 535 of the 545 respondents gave their home district.  
 

 Allerdale- Road safety, drug dealing/taking, antisocial behaviour  

 Barrow- Drug dealing/taking, antisocial behaviour, road safety 

 Carlisle- Drug dealing/taking, antisocial behaviour, road safety  

 Copeland- Antisocial behaviour, drug dealing/taking, fraud and scams 

 Eden- Road safety, drug dealing/taking, rural crime, antisocial behaviour*  

 South Lakeland- Road safety, drug dealing/taking, fraud and scams  
* Rural crime and antisocial behaviour were identified as a ‘very big problem’ by an equal 
percentage of respondents who lived in Eden. 
 
When analysing responses by age group, the following issues received the highest number of 
responses. Caution should be taken in interpreting the results, as responding to this question 
was optional; 519 people gave an age group.  
 

 Under 18- Road safety (No other issues identified as a ‘very big problem’) 

 18-24- Drug dealing/taking, domestic abuse, sexual assault 

 25-34- Drug dealing/taking, road safety, antisocial behaviour   

 35-44- Drug dealing/taking, antisocial behaviour, road safety 

 45-54- Drug dealing/taking, road safety, fraud and scams 

 55-64- Drug dealing/taking, road safety, antisocial behaviour   

 65-74- Road safety, drug dealing/taking, antisocial behaviour 

 75-84- Fraud and scams, road safety, criminal damage/vandalism, online crime^ 

 85 and over- Drug dealing/taking, road safety (No other issues identified as a ‘very big 
problem’) 

 
^ Criminal damage/vandalism and online crime were identified as a ‘very big problem’ by an 
equal percentage of respondents in this age group. 
 
When looking at gender, the following issues had the highest number of respondents saying 
they were a ‘very big problem’ in their local area.  
 

 Male- Drug dealing/taking, antisocial behaviour, road safety 

 Female- Drug dealing/taking, road safety, hate crime 

 Other-Online crime, sexual assault, domestic abuse 
 
After taking advice from the Constabulary Diversity Lead, the two categories of male and 
female were included in the survey. A small number of respondents selected ‘other’ for their 
gender. The responses were broadly consistent between males and females, in terms of the 
proportion who identified most of the issues as a ‘very big problem’. Key differences were in 
terms of hate crime and domestic abuse, which a higher proportion of females identified as 
an issue, and antisocial behaviour, which a higher proportion of males identified as an issue. 

20



 
 
 

 
 
 

The respondents who identified their gender as ‘other’ found different issues were more of a 
problem, as shown above.

21



 

 

Appendix 2- Police and Crime Plan Final Draft 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Keeping Cumbria Safe 
  
Police and Crime Plan 2021-2025 

22



 

 

Foreword 

I am pleased to present my second Police and Crime Plan. The Plan outlines how I will be 

working together with the Chief Constable and partner agencies to keep Cumbria safe. 

Much has been achieved in the past five years and Cumbria remains a safe county. 

However, now is not the time to take the foot off the pedal. Members of the public regularly 

tell me the issues which affect them, such as dangerous driving, antisocial behaviour and 

drugs in their local communities. It is one of my key roles as Police and Crime Commissioner 

to make sure that these concerns are heard by the Constabulary and hold the Chief 

Constable to account for the performance of the police force. I will also be focusing on the 

causes of crime and initiatives to tackle early and repeat offending. As with the rest of the 

country, as outlined by the Home Office’s ‘Beating Crime Plan’, I share the intention to: 

 Reduce murder and homicide 

 Reduce serious violence 

 Continue to disrupt drug supply and County Lines drug dealing 

 Reduce neighbourhood crime 

 Tackle cyber crime 

 Improve satisfaction for victims of crime and in particular victims of domestic abuse. 

Another issue which residents raise with me is having visible policing in their local 

communities. With the additional police officers recruited as part of the national Operation 

Uplift, we will continue to focus on deploying dedicated officers in many local areas. To 

support this, I will be asking the Chief Constable to carry out a review to ensure that the 

police workforce is best placed to meet current and future demands, putting the most 

appropriate resources in the right places. It is important to understand that there is a balance 

between visible police presence and the need for detectives who are the specialists in 

investigating crime.  

I know that local people are also concerned about crimes that are hidden behind closed 

doors and that frequently cause the highest level of harm to their victims, such as domestic 

abuse, online exploitation and fraud. It is only by working together and developing support 

services that people will have the confidence to come forward and report such crimes. 

We are living in unprecedented and challenging times. The Covid-19 pandemic has had, and 

continues to have, a massive impact on people living and working in Cumbria. The 

Constabulary will continue to be at the forefront of engaging, explaining, encouraging and 

enforcing the latest guidelines that emerge as we move forward. Once the longer-term 

consequences of the pandemic on people’s finances, health and behaviours become 

clearer, we will need to adapt and respond to the impact on crime levels and to support the 

needs of victims.  

We all need to play our part in keeping each other safe and in reducing the risk of crime in 

our area: ‘We not They’. Part of this is continuing to support groups and organisations whose 

work in local communities helps to prevent crime and antisocial behaviour. Every member of 

the public can help by passing information to the Police if they witness crime or suspicious 

behaviour: information is the most vital element in both preventing crime but also bringing 

perpetrators to justice. By working together, we can keep Cumbria safe.  

 

[Signature to be inserted] 

Peter McCall, Police and Crime Commissioner

23



 

 

Policing and Crime Objectives: Graphic1 
 

1. A Focus on Crime and the Causes of Crime 

2. A Visible and Effective Police Presence  

3. A Focus on Victims 

4. Preventing Offending and Reducing Reoffending 

5. Be the Voice of the Public on Policing Matters  

6. Ensuring the Police are at the Forefront of the Response 

7. Integrating Blue Light Services 

 

 

 

 

Top Local Issues Identified in the Police and Crime 

Priorities Survey2 

 Drug dealing and drug taking 

 Road safety, such as speeding and careless driving 

 Antisocial behaviour 

 Fraud and scams, including online, on the phone or on the doorstep 

 Online crime  

 

                                                      

1 The graphic will be included in the final design of the document.  
2  Police and Crime Plan Priorities Survey, summer 2021. Survey respondents were asked to rate 
how much of a problem a number of crime issues were in their local area; these issues had the 
highest number of people rating them as a ‘very big problem’.  

24



 

 

Policing and Crime Objectives 

This section of the Plan sets out the main areas of work for each objective. My role 

will be to listen to the issues which concern local people and to co-ordinate and drive 

the many areas of work which can only be achieved by agencies working together. 

My office will work with the Police, local communities and a range of public, private 

and community organisations to develop and commission projects and services set 

out in this Plan. I will also ask the Chief Constable to focus on the policing objectives 

in this Plan and hold them to account for their delivery. 

1. A Focus on Crime and the Causes of Crime 

Work with the local community, the Police and partner agencies to: 

 Develop projects and support policing activities which aim to prevent people 

from becoming involved in illegal drug taking and which target organised drug 

crime, including County Lines, to prevent the harm this has in local 

communities; 

 Play a leading role in coordinating the new public health duty to prevent 

serious violence; 

 Continue to develop the Police Cyber and Digital Crime Unit and run public 

awareness campaigns to help keep local communities safe online, particularly 

children and vulnerable people; 

 Promote safer driving, address causes of death and serious injury on our 

roads and encourage reporting of dangerous or antisocial driver behaviour;  

 Develop campaigns to raise awareness of rural crime and to encourage those 

affected to report it and to access support; 

 Support activities which provide positive opportunities for young people and 

which prevent young people at risk of exploitation or offending from being 

drawn into committing crime and antisocial behaviour; 

 Support and enable community groups to prevent and tackle crime and 

antisocial behaviour in their areas; 

 Encourage the development of services for people with mental health 

difficulties, to reduce vulnerability to becoming victims of crime. 

2. A Visible and Effective Police Presence  

Work with the Police and partner agencies to: 

 Continue to recruit and train more police officers as part of the national 

Operation Uplift; 

 Look at the impact of basing officers in local towns and villages, which has 

been made possible as a result of increases in police officer numbers; 

25



 

 

 Commission a review to understand the policing tasks needed to meet future 

demands on the service, to make sure the police force has the right people in 

the right role, in the right place; 

 Develop child-centred policing approaches to help to keep children safe; 

 Put in place initiatives which help people feel safer in local communities, 

including at night; 

 Support improved ways of working to help to solve crimes and bring offenders 

to justice. 

3. A Focus on Victims 

Work with partner agencies, the Police and support organisations to: 

 Commission services to support victims of crime and abuse to help them to 

cope and recover; 

 Ensure victims of crime are offered their entitlements under the national Code 

of Practice for Victims of Crime; 

 Keep improving how the Police deal with victims of crime and antisocial 

behaviour, to make sure there is a high level of satisfaction with the service; 

 Continue to support the role of women’s centres in working with women and 

young people who have experienced or are involved with crime or domestic 

abuse; 

 Develop support for children and young people who witness domestic abuse;  

 Continue to develop and commission services for victims of sexual assault 

and sexual abuse;   

 Review the processes for bringing suspects of rape and serious sexual 

assault to justice, to understand why cases do not progress to prosecution 

and where improvements can be made;  

 Encourage awareness and reporting of crime and abuse, particularly crimes 

such as domestic abuse, sexual assault, hate crime and modern slavery, 

where victims find it difficult to come forward; 

 Offer victims the opportunity to tell the person who committed the crime about 

the impact it had on them and others. 

4. Preventing Offending and Reducing Reoffending  

Work with the Police and partner agencies to: 

 Develop interventions aimed at encouraging a change in behaviour for young 

people who are at risk of, or have committed, a crime or antisocial behaviour;   

26



 

 

 Commission early intervention with adults to prevent them getting into a cycle 

of offending, including domestic abuse and hate crime;  

 Support partnership approaches that target offenders of neighbourhood 

crimes such as burglary and theft; 

 Develop a programme which works with those who pose a high risk of harm 

through domestic abuse;   

 Put in place new ways of delivering services which work with female offenders 

and female victims to make them available across more areas. 

5. Be the Voice of the Public on Policing Matters 

Work with partner agencies to: 

 Provide members of the public and businesses with the opportunities to speak 

to the Police and Crime Commissioner face-to-face and online, at events and 

surgeries; 

 Collect feedback from the public in Cumbria to understand the policing and 

crime issues that have affected them; 

 Review public concerns raised about the Constabulary and the quality of the 

service received; 

 Regularly listen to the lived experiences of victims of crime and ensure this is 

taken into account by criminal justice and support agencies; 

 Represent the concerns and issues raised by local communities with the 

Government, national bodies, the Police and local partner agencies.  

6. Ensuring the Police are at the Forefront of the Response 

Work with the Police and partner agencies to: 

 Understand and deal with the impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic to support 

recovery in the county; 

 Make sure the Police are ready to deal with threats which develop in or affect 

a wider area than Cumbria, including civil emergencies, natural disasters, 

terrorism, cyber attacks, organised crime and public order. 

7. Integrating Blue Light Services 

Work with the Police and partner agencies to: 

 Continue to build relationships between blue light services (Police, Fire and 

Ambulance services) to ensure they are run as efficiently as possible;  

27



 

 

 Understand the implications of Local Government Reorganisation for policing 

and other local services.  

28



 

 

How We Will Work 

1. Working in Partnership 

Partnership working must be at the heart of any approach to tackling crime and 

antisocial behaviour- where we all take responsibility for our part but also influence 

others to take theirs. As Commissioner, I do not deliver services but will support and 

try to influence others to focus on the issues that local people tell me are important. I 

chair the Safer Cumbria partnership, a countywide network of organisations involved 

in preventing and dealing with crime. To support this, partnership working by my 

office will coordinate and drive forward work to: 

 Prevent crime and antisocial behaviour; 

 Prevent the harm caused by abuse and criminal behaviour; 

 Develop joined-up and appropriate support for victims; 

 Prevent offending and reduce reoffending; 

 Improve victims’ experience of reporting to the Police and the court process; 

 Oversee Cumbria Police working with other forces in the North West of 

England. 

We will do this by: 

 Giving agencies feedback from the public, victims and other service users; 

 Influencing partner organisations’ plans to ensure they cover priorities within 

this Plan; 

 Taking a lead on priority areas within this Plan, such as leading projects to 

join-up services; 

 Finding out more about crime and antisocial behaviour issues in local areas 

from partnerships and agencies working across the county; 

 Gaining feedback on how services are operating and driving progress, where 

needed; 

 Discussing needs, gaps and potential approaches with partner organisations 

before buying new services, or working with partners to jointly set up projects; 

 Making funds available to certain partnerships to support them to start joint 

projects which address needs that have been identified. 

Examples of how we are doing this include: 

 Working with health, criminal justice and support services to join up services 

for victims of domestic abuse, sexual assault and sexual abuse; 

29



 

 

 Supporting and developing the role of the three women’s centres in the 

county, to provide a range of services for vulnerable women; 

 Speaking to victims, survivors of abuse and support organisations to 

understand their lived experiences following a crime and working with partner 

organisations to improve this; 

 Providing leadership to develop a shared vision for greater collaboration 

between Blue Light emergency services; 

 With a range of organisations, reviewing a number of cases which the Police 

have dealt with out of court to check that the right sanction has been given 

and to learn lessons. 

The Police also work with many other agencies and groups. Some examples include: 

 Working with local Community Safety Partnerships to identify local concerns 

and projects which will address them, including reducing violence that may 

happen after a night out drinking; 

 Helping to keep children and vulnerable adults safe by working with social 

care and support services; 

 Preparing for severe weather and other major emergencies in the county, 

working with other emergency and public services;  

 Working with support services for victims to make sure victims of crime get 

the right service when they are referred to them;  

 Collaborating with North-West England police services to share their expertise 

and support their investigations; 

 Working with the courts and Crown Prosecution Service to make the criminal 

justice process faster, more effective and more suitable for victims; 

 Going into schools to help keep young people safe and deal with antisocial 

behaviour.  

2. Commissioning and Funding 

I will provide the following resources to the Police to deliver the policing set out in 

this Plan. The figures below show the amount of funding currently planned to be 

provided from the Commissioner to the Chief Constable for policing between 2021 

and 2025.  2021-22 figures reflect the current year’s budget.  Future budgets may 

change and depend on the amount of Home Office Police Grant given to Cumbria.  

 

30



 

 

 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 

Police Officer Pay     97,139,153      93,777,271      97,038,027      99,657,439  

Police Staff Pay     27,181,018      29,072,012      30,228,476      31,036,493  

Non-Pay Costs     17,913,471      18,566,079      17,590,381      17,967,245  

Income - 5,260,984  - 5,106,493  - 5,158,104  - 5,318,071  

Total    136,972,658    136,308,869    139,698,780    143,343,106  

 

With funds I receive from the Government, I will also commission services in support 

of my statutory duties and to help address objectives within this Police and Crime 

Plan. This includes services which support victims. More information on how I will 

use funding is in my Commissioning Strategy. This is on my website at 

www.cumbria-pcc.gov.uk  

Any funding I make available to partner agencies or the public will be to support the 

priorities in this Police and Crime Plan. I have the following open grant scheme 

available at present: 

 Police and Crime Commissioner’s Property Fund- This distributes funds 

accumulated in the Police Property Fund as a result of the disposal of 

property seized by the Police under the Proceeds of Crime Act. Police officers 

or staff must make the application on behalf of a community or local group for 

projects which support the Police and Crime Plan.  

My open grant schemes are reviewed regularly. Each grant scheme has specific 

amounts of funding which can be applied for. Application packs and full grant criteria 

are on my website at www.cumbria-pcc.gov.uk  

3. Monitoring the Plan  

I will use a number of ways to check on how Cumbria Police is performing. These 

include: 

❖ Regular meetings with the Chief Constable to discuss current issues and 

areas for improvement; 

❖ Six-monthly updates from the Police on crime levels, public satisfaction and 

other data and a focus on themes from this Plan, such as roads policing, at 

my Public Accountability Conferences; 

❖ Receiving updates and gaining assurance on areas of work of public interest, 

such as investment into information technology and diversity in the police 

workforce; 

31



 

 

❖ Publishing information on my website about how Cumbria Police is performing 

and about inspections of the police force; 

❖ Speaking to local people and getting feedback on their experience of policing 

in Cumbria and issues that concern them; 

❖ Considering public surveys to see how respondents feel about their safety 

and the police service; 

❖ Making sure that the Police implement a plan for inclusion and race equality, 

including any learning from the review they commissioned to identify and 

address any racial disparities for anyone interacting with the Police; 

❖ A Victims’ Consultation Group, where the members, from across the county, 

talk about their experience of the criminal justice system and give views on 

new proposals; 

❖ Working with partners to understand what is and is not working well; 

❖ Meetings with Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and the Fire and 

Rescue Services after their inspections to understand what is working well 

and where the Police need to improve; 

❖ Reviews by our internal audit service and external financial audits which give 

valuable feedback and make recommendations on governance and financial 

processes against an agreed audit plan; 

❖ The Joint Audit Committee, which provides independent assurance in respect 

of my own and the Police’s organisational governance; 

❖ The Ethics and Integrity Panel, which promotes high standards of ethical 

performance in all aspects of policing, by reviewing and constructively 

challenging police processes and performance. The Panel also has this role in 

relation to the work of the Police and Crime Commissioner’s office.   

❖ An Independent Custody Visitor Scheme, which involves volunteers checking 

on the welfare of people held in police custody through unannounced spot 

checks.  

Further details of meetings held in public and online are available at www.cumbria-

pcc.gov.uk  

In turn, I will work with the Police and Crime Panel who have a remit to scrutinise 

and support me on delivering the Police and Crime Plan. 

 

4. Identifying the Priorities for this Plan 

32



 

 

In producing this plan, I have looked at many sources of information to identify what 

the priorities need to be. This includes local people’s concerns and the issues 

identified by partner organisations that are working to keep communities safe in 

Cumbria.  The national priorities for policing have also been considered, such as the 

Policing Vision 2025, the Beating Crime Plan and those issues monitored nationally 

through the Crime and Policing Measures framework. Local needs have been looked 

at, alongside the potential regional and national requirements for support from 

Cumbria Constabulary in times of major emergency or public unrest, which are set 

out in the Strategic Policing Requirement.   

 

Comments from the Chief Constable 

I am pleased to have been involved in the development of this plan and remain 

committed to working with the Police and Crime Commissioner to deliver it. The 

Covid pandemic has brought some unique challenges for policing and I feel that it is 

even more imperative to continue to put emphasis on those priorities which have a 

significant impact on our communities. 

Through focusing on crime and the causes of crime we can work with our partner 

agencies to establish the root cause of issues and tackle them from inception in a 

more proactive rather than reactive manner. By bringing officers back into our towns, 

we can be at the forefront of tackling antisocial behaviour whilst providing a visible 

and effective police presence to keep our communities safe.  

Our mission is to deliver an outstanding police service to keep Cumbria safe and I 

am confident that both delivery of the ‘Big 3’: tackling criminality, helping those in 

need and connecting with communities, whilst working together with the Police and 

Crime Plan, will achieve this. 

 

[signature to be inserted] 

Michelle Skeer QPM. 

 
 
 

33



This page is intentionally left blank



 

CUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

Meeting date: 14 October 2021 

From:  Monitoring Officer (Cumbria County Council) 

 
 

UPDATE ON COMPLAINTS 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report advises members of any complaints received in 

accordance with the Panel’s complaints procedure.  The 
report outlines where appropriate, what, if any, action has 

been taken in respect of the complaints. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 Members are asked to note the report. 

3.0 BACKGROUND 

3.1 At the meeting on 15 October 2018 the Panel agreed to adopt a 
revised complaints procedure to consider non-criminal complaints 

in relation to the Police and Crime Commissioner or other office 

holders. 

3.2 The Procedure  

3.2.1 As part of the revised procedure, the Monitoring Officer of 
Cumbria County Council will consider all complaints matters in 

the initial stages.  If the Monitoring Officer cannot broker a 
resolution, a sub-committee of the Panel should be convened to 

consider the matter further. 

35

Agenda Item 8



 

3.2.2 The Panel will receive a report to each meeting detailing the 
position with all ongoing complaints, and requesting a sub-

committee be convened if appropriate.   

4.0 DETAILS OF COMPLAINTS RECEIVED 

4.1 As at the date of this report and since the previous report, only 

one further complaint has been received.  As with the previous 
report, the OPCC’s view of the subject matter of the complaint is 

that it is not properly within the remit of Police and Crime Panel.   

 As set out in the previous report, permission was sought from the 

Home Office (in accordance with the terms of the grant to the 
host authority for the Panel) for the Panel to be able to seek 

Counsel’s advice on the point.  This permission has been granted, 

but only recently.  

 As at the date of this report, initial instructions had been 

provided to Counsel but, in Counsel’s view, further information 
was needed to enable advice to be finalised.  Accordingly, that 

information is being collated to allow Counsel to provide final 

advice.   

 As there is some urgency to this, it is expected that by the time 
of the next Panel meeting the advice will have been provided and 

the issue resolved.  

 

Iolanda Puzio 
Monitoring Officer, Cumbria County Council 

 
4 October 2021 

  
APPENDICES 

 

None 
 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
No background papers  

 
 

Contact: Ben Spencer 
E-mail: ben.spencer@cumbria.gov.uk 

Telephone: 07919 297914 
 

36

mailto:ben.spencer@cumbria.gov.uk


CUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

Meeting date: 14 October 2021 

From: Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Manager, 

Cumbria County Council 

 

PANEL UPDATE REPORT 

 

1.1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.2 This report updates the Police and Crime Panel on key issues and 
developments that have occurred since the last meeting on 9 July 2021. 

 
 

2.0  ISSUES FOR THE PANEL 
 

2.1 Note the range of information and activity set out in the report. 
 

2.2  Identify any areas on which Panel Members require further information 
or other action. 

 
 

3.0  BACKGROUND 
 

Update on National Policy and Legislation 

 
 Police, Crime, Sentencing and Courts Bill 

 

3.1 The Police, Crime, Sentencing and Courts Bill has completed its initial 
journey through the House of Commons since the last Panel meeting in 

July and is now in the Committee Stage in the House of Lords. 
 

3.2 The Bill’s progress is being closely tracked, and further analysis of the 
implications will be provided at the appropriate time. 

 
 Beating Crime Plan 

 
3.3 In July, the Government published its ‘Beating Crime Plan’ which sets out 

its ambitions of fewer victims of crime, peaceful neighbourhoods and a 
safer country. 

 
 

37

Agenda Item 9



3.4 The Plan sets out a strategic approach focused on the following themes: 
 

 Cutting homicides 
 Serious violence and neighbourhood crime 

 Exposing and ending hidden harms 
 Building capability and capacity to deal with fraud and online crime. 

 
3.5 Specific measures included in the Plan include: 

 
  A new national online platform providing access to a range of 

interactive police services in one co-ordinated place – including 
details about neighbourhood police officers 

 Develop league tables for answering 101 and 999 calls 
 A new 317 million package focused on young people admitted to 

A&E with a knife injury or following contact with the police 

 Investment in specialist teams in both mainstream schools and 
Alternative Provision in serious violence hotspots to support young 

people at risk of involvement in violence to re-engage in education 
 Expanding use of electronic monitoring for serious acquisitive 

offenders to a further 13 police force areas  
 Trialling the use of alcohol tags – which detect alcohol in the sweat 

of offenders guilty of drink-fuelled crime – on prison leavers in 
Wales  

 Hold a summit later this year to bring employers together to 
encourage more prison leavers to enter employment 

 Increasing the police’s use of drug testing on arrest  
 Deliver a cross-Government summit to work up a comprehensive 

package of measures that will drive down demand for illegal drugs 
and tackle these challenges across society.  

 

3.6 Delivery of the Plan will be driven by the Government but also relies on 
others, including in particular Police and Crime Commissioners and Local 

Criminal Justice Boards. The full Strategy is available at Beating crime 
plan - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk). 

 
 Violence against Women and Girls Strategy 

 
3.7 In July, the Home Office published a new Tackling Violence against 

Women and Girls Strategy for England and Wales. 
 

3.8 The Strategy sets out 3 government ambitions to reduce the prevalence 
of violence against women and girls, and improve the support and 

response for victims and survivors. These are: 
 

 To decrease the number of victims (as measured through the Crime 

Survey in England and Wales) by preventing more of these crimes 
and identifying more of the crimes that are not prevented. 

38

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/beating-crime-plan
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/beating-crime-plan


 To increase support for victims and survivors, through ensuring they 
have access to quality support appropriate to their needs (as 

measured through increased funded support services); 
 

 To increase the number of perpetrators brought to justice (as 
measured through police recorded crime and court data), including 

for rape and other sexual offences, domestic abuse, stalking and 
harassment, and ‘honour’-based abuse including female genital 

mutilation and forced marriage. 
 

o And also to increase reporting to the police (as measured by 
the Crime Survey for England and Wales and police recorded 

crime) and increase victim engagement with the police and 
wide public service response.  

 

 And specifically to reduce the proportion of victims of these 
crimes withdrawing from criminal justice proceedings and 

increase public confidence in the system (measured by 
police recorded crime and criminal justice agency reporting 

data); and, 
 

3.9 The actions identified to achieve these ambitions include: 
 

 Prevention 
 

o The Home Office will invest £3 million to better understand 
what works to prevent violence against women and girls;  

 
o To help ensure women feel safe in public places, the Home 

Office is launching a £5 million Safety of Women at Night Fund 

focused on the prevention of violence against women and girls 
in public spaces at night;  

 
o The Home Office will also pilot a tool, StreetSafe, which will 

enable the public to anonymously report areas where they feel 
unsafe and identify what about the location made them feel this 

way. The data will be used to inform local decision-making; and  
 

o The Department for Education will better support teachers to 
deliver the recently introduced Relationships, Sex and Health 

education curriculum, as well as explore how we can use young 
people, such as university students, to support this.  

 
 Support for victims and survivors 

 

o The Home Office will provide £1.5 million funding to further 
increase provision for ‘by and for’ services and to further 

increase funding for valuable specialist services such as the 
‘revenge porn’ helpline;  

39



 
o To ensure students and young people are supported, the 

Department for Education will work with the Office for Students 
to tackle sexual harassment and abuse in higher education 

(including universities) and will review options to limit use of 
Non-Disclosure Agreements in cases of sexual harassment in 

higher education; and  
 

o NHS England and NHS Improvement are developing local 
‘pathfinder’ projects for enhanced trauma-informed mental 

health support for sexual abuse victims and survivors with the 
most complex needs 

 
 Increasing number of perpetrators brough to justice 

 

o The Home Office will appoint an independent reviewer to review 
the police management of registered sex offenders in the 

community and will provide new investment for the National 
Crime Agency to develop new methods of identifying serial sex 

offenders from existing data. The Government will also take 
forward work looking at the escalation of sexual offending;  

 
o The Department for Health and Social Care will work to 

criminalise ‘virginity testing’, which some women and girls are 
being forced to undergo;  

 
o The Home Office is working with the College of Policing and 

others to produce new advice on existing laws for police officers 
to more effectively respond to street harassment and to better 

understand the effectiveness of existing offences in tackling the 

issue of sex for rent, and to ensure that proper use is 
consistently made of tools such as Stalking Protection Orders; 

and  
 

o The Government is considering the recommendations of the 
Law Commission’s review of abusive and harmful online 

communications which was commissioned by the Department 
for Digital, Culture Media and Sport and recommends a range 

of new offences, including a new threatening communications 
offence and a new offence of cyberflashing. 

 
3.10 The Strategy is available in full at Tackling violence against women and 

girls strategy - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 
 

3.11 The Government has committed to publishing strategies in relation to 

Domestic Abuse, Child Sexual Exploitation an Drugs over the coming 
weeks and months. 

 
 

40



 Review of Police and Crime Commissioners 
 

3.12 In July, the Government also launched Part 2 of the review of the role of 
Police and Crime Commissioners. This part of the review, and follow-up 

from Part One, will focus on: 
 

 Examining the role of PCCs in offender management. 
 

 Considering the role of PCCs in the partnership landscape and 
assessment of the sufficiency of PCC’s current tools and levers in 

relation to reducing crime, combatting drugs misuse and tackling 
anti-social behaviour – the review will focus on Local Criminal 

Justice Boards, Community Safety Partnerships and Violence 
Reduction Units. 

 

 A stakeholder consultation on giving a general power of competence 
to PCCs as afforded to Local Authorities. 

 
 Assessing the Police and Crime Panel model - specifically the 

potential benefits of independent members, identifying and securing 
the right skill sets and options to strengthen panel support. 

 
 Considering whether the existing mechanisms for investigating 

complaints and allegations against PCCs are sufficient and examine 
the role of the IOPC in assessing criminal wrongdoings by PCCs and 

the issue of vexatious complaints. 
 

 Considering the merits and demerits of introducing recall for PCCs 
for very serious breaches of behaviour, including what might be a 

suitable trigger mechanism. 

 
 Examining how PCCs use data in holding Chief Constables to 

account for the efficient and effective delivery of policing services in 
their respective areas, including how data is fed into centrally-held 

databases and is utilised by the Home Office and relevant policing 
partners to reduce crime. 

 
3.13 In addition, and separate to the PCC Review, the Ministry of Justice is 

considering the role of PCCs in enforcing victims’ rights and 
commissioning support services. 

 
 Funding Opportunities 

 
3.14 The third round of the Home Office’s Safer Streets Fund was announced 

on 3 October 2021. Cumbria’s Police and Crime Commissioner was 

awarded £191,583.96. 
 

 

41



4.0 CONCLUSION 
 

4.1 Following the Panel’s consideration of the draft Police and Crime Plan at 
this meeting, it is proposed that the Panel review its work programme 

and identify issues for further investigation. 
 

 
Clare Killeen 

Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Manager 
Cumbria County Council 

  

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 

None  
 

 
Contact: Clare Killeen, telephone: 07771913588 or e-mail 

clare.killeen@cumbria.gov.uk 
 

42

mailto:clare.killeen@cumbria.gov.uk

	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Revenue Budget Monitoring 2021/22
	7 Police and Crime Plan for Cumbria
	8 Update on Complaints
	9 Panel Update Report

